Contents

Freface
Chapter:

1.

10,
11,
12,
13,

Cverview

Ancient Origins of the Coffey Family

The Early Coffey Ancestors in America

Colonial Virginia Flanters - John Coffey and Jane Graves
Virginia to North Carolina - James Coffey and Elizabeth Cleveland
The Cleveland Family

Kissin' Cousins - Other Coffeys in Virginia and North Carolina
Fron*ier ~amilies ~ Archelaus Coffey and Eleanor Wade

The Wade Family

On the Wilderness Trail - James Coffey and Frances Lane

The Lane Family

The Dabney Family

On the Oregon Trail - John Coffey and Nancy 3nyder

Appendix A
Appendix B
Appendix C

Index

{. Coffey names

2, Surnames other than Coffey

i1

Fare

ix

=

106
123
127
149
167
187
209
211
213

217
220



Illustrations

Coffey Coat of Arms

Map of Ireland

Map of Europe .

Map of "Lower" Virginia

Curing and 3torage of Tobacco

Map of Virginia showing moves of Coffey family
Map of Albemarle county

Map of Caldwell county North Carolina

Bennie Bryan Coffey & Jacqueline Coffey Sexton
Mark Alan & Todd Coffey, Coffey cemetery, Wayne co., KY
Map of area where Coffeys lived in 1700s and early 1800s
Two General John Coffeys

Balley H. Coffey

Map of Wayne county Kentucky

View of Cumberland Gap

Area along Otter Creek, Wayne county Kentucky
Township map of Saline county Illinois

Land where Coffeys lived in Saline county Illinois
Sangamon county Illinois

Map of Gallatin and Saline county Illinois
"Achilles" Coffey

James A, Coffey

Tombstones of James and Frances (Lane) Coffey
Bethel Creek Church, Saline county Illinois

Cedar Creek Quaker Meeting House, Hanover county Virginia
Lewls Lane family

William Dabney Lane family

Thursia E, Lane Giddens and family

Jeremiah Ewing Lane family

George Washington Lane

Houston E, Morrow family and Opal Lea Morxrow
Coirt House Square, Independence Missouri, 1850s
Map of the Oregon Trail

The author

iv

113
116
118
130
131
131
132
133
134
134
135
136
152
159
160
164
165
165
166
192
194
215



Preface

In Volume I of this work a history of James Bluford Coffey (my ereat grand-
father) was given. All of his descendants, as far as known, were also listed and
discussed. This volume deals with his ancestors, not only on the Coffey line but
also to some extent on the collateral lines of Lane, Dabney, Wade, Cleveland,
Graves, Powell and others. 1In addition, I have felt it advisable to include some
collateral Coffey lines and considerable data on other and unplaced Coffey lines
in Colonial and early post-Revolutionary times. There is much yet unknown about
the relationships of the latter, and it is hoped that the inclusions of the data
I have accumulated may help some other researchers to find their ancestral lines.
The purpose of this volume is thus two fold: first, to provide information for my
family (descendants of James Bluford Coffey) about their ancestry, and second,
to make the data T have accumulated during the past 20-odd years available to
other Coffey researchers.

In deciding what to include on collateral Coffey lines I started out with the
general rule to not go further than the families of the brothers and sisters of
my direct line ancestors. However, where I have known or had considerable corres-
pondence with some living descendants of these lines I have often included them
and their lines. Where much information is available in other published family
histories I have referred the reader to those works rather than attempt a repe-
tition of their data. 1In some cases I have given my own interpretation of the
data which may differ from that of others. I make no apologies for this; I have
simply presented the material "as I see it."

No one person can write a history of all the Coffeys in America or even the
descendants of Edward Coffey and Ann Powell. Thus, this work should not be con-
sidered an attempt to do so, btut rather an account of some of the better known of
these descendants. Omission of more recent generations on most lines will un-
doubtedly disappoint some readers. I have felt that that information is more
readily available to them than that of the earlier lines and have thus made my
choice of material to include on this basis. To have included more would have
greatly lengthened this volume and the time necessary to produce it.

The reader will find a study of the charts in Chapter 1 helpful before pro-
ceeding further as this should orient him to the overall picture and to the chapter
where a particular family can be found., In using the charts in other chapters
the reader should note that I have used standard genealogical form with the dates
and abbtreviations. While dates are given in the traditional manner (e.g;. Feb-
ruary 2, 1827) in the narrative part, in the charts (and other compacted material)
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the renealogical form (e.g., 2 Feb 1827) is used. 3tate abbreviations are those
used by the U.3. Fostal 3ervice., Other abbreviations are also rather stancard.
They include:

b= born d = dled bur = buried m or md = married dau = daughter

abt = about %bef = vefore aft = after, etc,

The system employed in many family histories of assigning a number to each
ancestor or a number or letter to each generation has not been employed here.
Instead, each generation is indented 6 spaces, 3 for the vitel in“ourmation about
a given person, and 3 more for a listing of his or her children, Note, for ex-
ample, page 47. The vital data of Thomas Coffey is indented 3 spaces and then a
numerical listing of the children follow, each indented the same 3 additional
spaces under the heading "children." Note that all the descendants of each child
will be listed before going to the next child. If someone has been wmarried twice,
all the descendants of the first marriage will be listed before going to the s=c-
ond ~arriage (e.g., Thomas Coffey's first marriage (p. 47) to Zlizabeth 3mith is
followed by all of her children and then Thomas' 2nd marriage to 3ally Fields is
followed by her children., Information about a spouse, if known, usually follows
his or her name and is in parentheses. For example, on page 46 it can be seen
that Edmond Coffey married Nancy Barnett who died before 27 April 1829, the mar-
riage taking place in Albemarle or Amherst county,

Although I have attempted to get all material up to date, this book will be
out of date as soon as it is published (if not before). The turn to = search of
"roots" by so many people is resulting in an accellerated uncovering of new mater-
ial. 1In time some of the information here can probably be added to or improved
upon. However, after years of intensive research there comes a time when one
must draw a line, publish what he has, and get on with other things. I believe
that time for me has come, Perhaps if enocugh new information becomes available
a second edition may some day be published. Suffice it to say that this book is
not complete, nor is it the final word on the Coffey history.

Errors will undoubtedly be found in this work. For these I take full respon-
sibility. Those who find any such errors will be helping the author a great deal
if they would bring them to his attention. The same holds true for omissions. It
is anticlpated that an "errata and addenda" sheet will be produced at a later date.
I would welcome correspondence from anyone having additional or different informa-
tion, including differing interpretations. Family history is only useful if it
can be shared. It is my hope that the information in this volume will be useful
to many others.
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I wish to acknowledge my wife, Wanda, for help in preparation of the index,
and my daughter, ~orilee, for some of the drawings of maps. Most of the other ‘%ﬁ
drawings are mine, Those redrawn from other sources are generally acknowledged
after the caption of the drawing, Illustrative material used on many of the chap-
ter pages has been taken from the Dover Publications Clip-Art 3eries and grateful
acknowledgement is hereby given.?
Marvin D, Coffey

Ashland, Oregon
June 1984

DEDICATION

To ail Coffey descendants: Those who

have gone before, those who are now

searching, and those yet to come -

This book 1s thoughtfully dedicated, -

FRZFACC ADDEIIAY SCR 2nd FRINTIHG, 1GG4:

A * in the right-hand margin of any page indicates additicnal ana/or
corrected infoermation in the 3Supplement located at the end ¢ this Book.

2 One notable exception is the picture on the cover plate of Chapter 5. This is
from “The Baptist Almanac and Repository of Indispensable Knowledge" by Reuben
Herring and published by Broadman Press, Nashville, TN who gave permission for AW%
its use.
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CHAPTER 1

OVERVIEW

""Man is but the sum of his ancestors'
«-- Emerson




1

J;mes Bluford Coffey was born Cctober 11, 1837 in the 3aline district of
Gallatin county Illinois. When not quite 16 years old he made the long trip to
Cregon in a covered wagon with his family. He, his parents, and his grauiparents
were restless pioneers, moving often and into undeveloped areas., James' story
was told in Volume I of this work; that of his parents and grandparents is in
Chapters 13 and 10, respectively of this volume. The siory of these families
is not greatly different from that of many others of the same time periods. As
new areas of the United States were charted, children or whole families moved
further into such lands seeking new opportunities.

Our Coffey line started in the "lower" counties of Virginia but soon moved
further west and south as new lands were surveyed., learly all of this line
finally left Virginia, most going first to North Carolina in tke 1770s and 1760s.
In the late 1790s and the early 1800s most of the Coffey families of North Caro-
lina moved on, either further south or to Tennessee or Kentucky. 1In each of these
areas large groups of the families tecame established, tut always, some moved
further west. '

From XKentucky my line moved to Indiana and then Illinois and Missouri. Many
others followed suit and today Coffeys are found in every state of the Union.
However, the largest numter remain in the South.

The story told in this volume is largely one of a line which made one of
the biggest breaks at an early date, following the Oregon Trail in 1853. Cne
could not tell this story without relating those of other families found along
the way. Thus the reader will find in this volume abundant information cn many
other Coifey families, as well as a number of non-Coffey fawilies., The following
charts should help put some of these families in propexr perspective for the reader.



CHART 1
SOME DESCENDANTS OF EDWARD COFFEY

Edward Coffey and Ann Powell
Essex co. VA, 1699-1716°
(see (ihlpt. 3

] |
John ICoﬂey Edward Coffey H-rth.'(:offoy (Patsy) Ann or A—!muter(n) Coffey Austin or Austes Coffey Elizaheth Coffey
od. Jane Craves od. Grace Cleveland md, Joshua Stapp md, M{iss Shenalt (?) md. John Cleveland
gssex, Spotaylvania, & Albe- (see chept. 3) (sea chapt, J) (see chapt ) Orange co. VA
marle cos.,VA. 1728-1775 James Coffoy (see chapt. )
(see chapt. &) (see chapt. 3)
1
r | ] 1 l T l T
James Coffey wWillian John Coffey 4 Coffey Winifred Thomas Coffey Reuben Coffey Benfamin Coffey El{zabeth Coffey
mod, Elisabeth Cleveland Coffey, md, ®d.(1) Dorcas w©d, Nency Coffey,md. mod.(1)Eligabeth =d. Sally od, Polly Hayes md. Thomas Flelds
Albemarle-Acherst cos.VA; Eliszabeth Carter, (2) Barnett Nicholas Smith, (2) Sarah Scott (see chapt.&) (see chept. 4)
Wilkea co.,N.C.,1750-1706 Osbourne Nancy Richerd- (chapt,.a) Moran Flelds (cheapt &)
(see c'upt. S) (sce chept.4) son (chapt.b) (chapt.&) (Chapt.4)
| ] L\ | | * | |
Elisabeth John Archelaus Janes Reub: Martha Ambrose Coffey Eli{ Coffey Rice Coffey Joel Coffey Lewis Rusaell Coffey
Coffey,ed. Coffey » Coffey-175S Coffey Coffey Coffey od, (1)Milley od. Hannah md. Sarsh md. Martha nd. 3ldant Moore
williem od, Mary od . Elesnor unmar,? ¥ md, Milley wd Mastin Moore,(2)Eligabeth Allen Bredford ? (see chapt. %
Whiteoides (Polly) Wade-1755-83 (chapt.5) Morris 7 Durham Rice (chept.5) {chapt.5) Tcﬁnpt.S)
(chapt.5)  (chapt.5)  (chept.B) (chapt.5) (chept.5) (chapt.5)
' !
James M. Coffey John Coffey Jane Coffey
1776 1778 1782
md. Frances Lane wd, Polly Harbord od, William Harbord
1803-1849 (see chept. 8) (see chapt, 8)
(eee chapt.10,11,12) .
[ ] | ) ] | ! | |
Archelaus Thomas John Coffey Avn Coffey Blinor Sally Coffey James Wesley Levis Coffey Louisa Coffey Ell Coffey
Coffey Coffey 1810 1812 Coffey 1816 Coffey,1818 1820 1823 1825
1806 1808 wd, Nancy od., John 1814 od, Ewing md. Mary md. Nency nd, John od. (1) Nancy
od, Jane od, Kesia Snyder,1832- Baldridge md, Jemea Flannigan Kane Laswell Lane Russell, (2)
Desn Varnier 1879. 1L,M0,0R  (chapt.10) Kennedy Chapt.10) (chept.10) (chept . 10) (chapt.10) Nancy Foster
(sce chapt.10) (see chapt.10) (see chapt.13) (chapt.10) (chapt. 10V

James Bluford Coffey
1837

Gallatin co.,IL to

Oregon (eee chept,l

and 13) a. Dates from to

{ndtcate married yeers;
single dates are year harn.



CHART NUMBER I-A

L3

Ancestry of James Bluford Coffey

John COFFEY

_Archelaug COFFLY

avnN 1755
wiene Albemarle co. VA

”

—James COGFRRY

Elizabeth CLEVELAND __ _

James M. CGOFFEY wHFN MARRIED 2bE 1775
an 20 Jul 1776 " oo abt 178/
wiene Asherst co., VA wuene Wilkes co,, N.C, w _John WADY
WHEN MARRIED 16 Jan 1804 ol Eleanor WALE
oico 7 Jan 1849 soAn 80t 1755 .
wmene Allenarle co., VA 10 (_E11zabeth

wiene3aline or Hamilton co.,
1,

+ James Bluford COFFEY
soan 11 Oct 1837

wreae Gallatin co., IL
wren manmieo(1 )19 Oct, 1862
oo ) Jul 1924

wrine Adams, Umatilla, "OR
{1) Mary Any MCCOMKLE
NAME OF HUSBAND OR WIFE

(2) mary Elizabeth BULIN

soAn 22 Apr 1810

oiko after 1829
wunere 1111nols (?)

dilliam LANE

wHERE Wayne co,, KY R 0 -
whHen MaRmigD 13 Sep 1832 1o Thones LANE
oseo - 8 Apr 1879 soan abt 1743 y
wiene Lookingglass,Douglas,OR WHERE Virpinia a1 LAnne CReN
s Frances LANE wHEN MARRIEO 8 Aug 17873 ‘
sonn 22 Jun 1785 oo abt 1836/7
WHERE North Carolina weeae 30, JIllinois 22 -
oo 24 Oct 1859 19 LNancy DABNEY
wuene Salins co., IL sonn abt 1766
WHERE Virginia n R
oD .
WHERE
24 -
(2)16 Jul 1866 -+ 12
BORN
WHERE 1) —_—
' WHEN MARRIED
BORN OIED
WHERE WHERE 26
WHEN MARRIED IH
DIED 80AN
WHERE WHERE 27
|_Nancy JNY[ER olED
soan | Dec 1815 WHERE
WHERE Virginia 28
oo 28 Feb 1893 "
wiHere Lexington, Morrow, OR BONN
WHERE 1
? WHEN MARRIED
BORN DIED
WHERE WHERE 2 -
DitD 16
WHERR BOAN
WHERE n .-
DIED

WHERE



CHART NUMB=R 1-B

Ancestry of japes Bluford Coffey, Cont.

2 James CUFFEY

John COFFEY

ROUN
|:mms (see chapt. 3) ”
wnen marmiED bt 1699

00ORN att ‘700
wHERE ESsex co,, VA

wHEN MARRIE0 abt 1728 °
oieo W.p. J0 Kar 1775
wngag Albemarle co., VA

BORAN 1729 *
wheae Essex co., VA
wHEN MARRIED &bt 1750
pigo - W.p. 26 Oct 1786
wherg Wilkes co., N.C.

(see chapt. 5)

s Archelaus COFFEY
8ORAN 1755
WHERE Albemarle CO, VA
weEN MARRIED AbL, 1755 .
oo abt 1783/4
wnene Wilkes co., N.C,*
Eleanor WADE

NAME OF HUSSAND OR WIFE

Elizabeth CLEVELAKD

sonn abt 1726/7
WHERE Virginia
oico abt 1826/7
WHERE Bedford co., TN

(see chapts. 5 & 6)

(see chapt., 4)

BME&EHJJJRA

soan &bt 1707
wnens prob. Easex co., VA

oo W.p. 20 Hov. 1716

wuene Essex co,, VA 1w Thopas FOWELYL,
A Wbl
BORN (see chapt. 3)
e (see chapt. 3) v LE - )
DIED
WHERE
20 _James GRAVES™
John GRAVES
aoRN (see chapt. 4)
wneng  (Se€ chapt, 4) 21 LJean MAYFIELD

WHEN MARRIED
oo W.p. 17 Hay 1720
wrere E8sex co. . YA 22

DIED 1792 "
where Wilkes co., N.C, BORN  (ggq chapt 4)
(ue ehﬂpt. ll') WHERE '33
DIED
WHERE
24
w2 Roger Clevyeland |
BORN
WHERE (see b
_Alexander CLEVELAND _________|wnen mMARRIED chapt. 6)
sonn bap. 31 Jul 1687 01ED pee
wnene Gloucester co., VA WHERE 20
wHEN MaRmiED 8Dt 1711 12 | Dorcas
oo abt 1770 BORN
wnens prob. Blus Run, Orange, wueae 7
VA pIEo
(see chapt. 6) WHERE
28
1
8ORN
WHERE 20
Mary or Milley PRESLEY WHEN MARRIED
BOAN DIED
WHERE WHERE 20
oo att 1770 113
wHEng prob. Blue Run, Orange, s8oAN
! VA WHERE a
0I€0
WHERE



CHAPTER 2

ANCIENT ORIGINS

OF THE COFFEY FAMILY

"The farther you look back,
the farther you can see ahead"
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In considering this subject it should be understood that we do not know the
specific origin of our Coffey line, However, all of those coming to America seenm
to have criginated in Ireland. The name Coffey is an English rendering of the
Irish Cobhthaigh or Cobhthach, which means '"victorious", 2 As is true with rany
other Irish names it was in earlier times given as O'Coffey and O'Coththaish, *
meaning “of the family of" or "descendant of", The name Coththaigh is Gaelic,
originating from Celtic bands that roamed over much of Eurcpe in the 3rd and 4th
centuries, B.C, and invaded Ireland sometime later.3 The Cobthtnaigh line is
traced back to Coththaigh's grandfather Olliol Flann Beag, King of Munster (about
240 A.D.), and from there to the brothers Ithe and Bile, relatives of Milesius,
King of Spain.u In 803 A.D. Fergus Mos 0'Coththaigh trought the leaders of the 3
most powerful waring clans of Eire, the O'Briens, O'Niels, and dcCarthys, together
at Tara, the ancient capitol of Eire, where a peace treaty was signed. For his

diplomacy and respect for law and order he was made supreme judge of Eire, a

position which has been hereditarily held by the family for seven generations,

Members of this family seem to have settled in various rarts of Ireland, tut
there were 3 main septs.5 The best known was C'Cowhey, 0'Cowhig, or C'Coffey of
Fuin Cleena, chief of Triocha Meona, now the barony of West Barryroe, Corca
Laoighe (Cork county) in Munster.u These once powerful chiefs had seven castles
along the coast and ruins of them still exist.

A second group was Ui Maine?s) (counties Galway and Roscommon in Connaught. )
They lost their lands and influence in the Crowwellian and Williamite confiscations
of the 17th century. The Irish Civil War of 1641 is credited with being the cause
of the Commonwealth confiscations in Ireland. Because of their devotion to faith,
King, and country the estates of the Irish “Papist"landed gentry were almost
wholesale confiscated to make room for the Cromwellian settlement. In 1649 Crom-
well became Commander-in-Chief of all English forces in Ireland and soon con-
quered most of the country. There followed a great deal of redistribution of the
land. 1In 1675 123 million acres were redistributed, nearly 8% million acres passing
into the hands of English and Scottish settlers. During the Williamite ccnfisca-
tions, 1688-1702, 1,060,792 acres and much personal possessions were forfeited by
Irishmen loyal to King James the Second. About one-fourih of these were eventually

9
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returned to their former owners (by the Treaty of Limerick), btut most went to pers-
onal friends of King William the Third. Another consequence of the Commonwealth
confiscation of Ireland was the suppression of prefixes like 0'. 3ome families
later returned to this use but the Coffeys did not. 2,4

Some of the Coffeys transplanted or otherwise removed from their lands in-
cluded in 1653-54: Thomas Coffie, Balligiffe, county Westmeath; Edward Coffy,
Ballinkeny, county Westmeath; Murtagh Coffy, Rogerstown, county Westmeath; and
Daniel Coffey, Province of Connaught. Others, date and locality not given, were:
Teige Coffie, and Hugh and Owen Coffy.®

The third Cofféy fam11y2'5 was
that of county Westmeath in Leinster,
a celebrated bardic family. 1In
ancient Ireland the bards ranked
next to royalty. They preserved
the folklore, handing it down from -
generation to generation by word of
mouth. A bardic Coffey family also
lived in Connaught.

There are genealogical charts
listing descendants from Ithe through
over 90 generations down to an Ed-
ward Coffey in America in the 1800s. %
However, we do not know at which

roint our line branched from this
H&O;aomm COUNTLES i NIICH COFFEYs genealogy. It is quite possible the
ancestor went from Ireland to England
for sometime before coming to America. The later (nineteenth century) Coffeys
who came to America from Dublin were probably of the Munster sepf (largely from

county Cork.)

If one wishes to trace their origins further than the above a good source is
O'Hart's Irish Pedigrees” and The Anmals of the Four Masters by 0'Clery, et al.”
After listing the generations from Adam to Noah as given in the B&b&e.a and that
Noah's son Japhet was given Europe and most of Asia as an inheritance, OHart men-
tions some descendants of Japhet that settled and developed the Scythian nation
(see map on next page). Ireland was invaded by a series of sythian groups in
very early times tut the most prominent were the Melesians. They seem to be

descended from Japhet's son Magog (as were the earlier groups) tut through the

™
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jatter's son Baoth and several generations of descendants who spent some time in
Phoenicia, Egypt, and Crete before one Brigus conquered large areas around the
Mediterranean, including what is now Spain. He had 2 sons, Ithe and Bile, The
latter was King of these conquered contries and his son Milesius succeeded him.
Milesius was quite an adventurer. He went to Scythia where he became a general
and married the King's daughter. Because he was so popular the King became
jealous of him and ensuing events led to Milesius slaying the King. He then
went to Egypt where the Pharach made him his general and gave him a daughter,
Scota, in marriage, Milesius now being a widower., At length he took leave and
returned to Spain. Some years later he sent his uncle Ithe along with the
latter's son Lughaidh to Ireland, Ithe was subsequently killed by the ruling
group there. Lughalidh and some of the men escaped to bring word back to Miles-
fus who then dispatched his sons and many men to conquer the Island, Milesius'
son Heremon eventually became the sole ruler of Ireland and his brother's sons
received large land inheritances. He also gave a part of Munster to Lughaidh.

"
;»{7 3
IRELAN >
(-2

“MAP OF EURGFE, THE MEDETERRAHEAN AXD THE MEAR BAST, INDICATING SOME
POSSIHLE ORIGINS OF THE MELESTANS AND IRISH CELTS THAT MAY HAVE
GIVEH RISE T0 THE COFFEY LINE
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The “ilesians ruled Ireiaml fur 2,335 years down to their submissiorn to the Crown
of kEngland in the person of Henry the 3econd. The Heremonian ncovility includes
all the kings of 3cotland down to the Stuarts and the Kings and {uecns of England
from Henry the 3econd down to the present time.u

From Ithe's son Lughaidh O'Hart gives the descendants down to Couthach Fionn,
a name meanling "Falrhaired Victor." Cobthach is synonomous with Cobhthalgh., His #
son was O'Cobnthaigh and as mentioned earlier, local dialects were angiicised to
0'Coffey, O'Cowhig, Cowhey, Caughey, Coffey, Coffy, and Coffee. Ihe name O'Cuffey
exists at least from as early as 1213 A.D. when Aimmire ('Coffey died.* He was
an "abbot of the Church of Derry, an ecclesiastic of nobvie birth, distinguished
for plety, charity, wisdom and other virtues.” He was also a near kinsman of
Erlile, mumber 104 on the Nicholson line.

A list of the principle or well-known families in Ireland frum the 1ith to
the beginning of the 17th century included O'Coffey, chief in Westmeath, O'Coffey
in Galway and O'Coffé'(location not mentioned).u In 1960 there were listed as
veing 4,250 Coffeys in Ireland,

3ince Ireland was invaded by many groups over the centuries, the Coffey
line as well as others must have been well mixed. Gomer, anotiier descendant of
Japhet, is thought by most scholars to be the ancestor of the Cimmerians who in
turn were the source of, among others, the Gaelic and Celtic peoples, some of
whom settled Ireland. It should be mentioned that the terms Gaelic and Celtic
have come to be almost synonymous in texrms of origin.

There 1s another source10 that suggests that the name which means "fairhaired
victor" (Cobthach Fionn) must have come from a Norseman during the Norse in-
vasion (in the 9th and 10th centuries), who stayed around and married a native
Irish girl., This does make more sense as one would not expect a line from 3Spain
or Southern Europe to produce someone who was "“fairhaired" and we know that the
Norsemen did remain in Ireland for several centuries and intermarried with the
Celts and others who were already there. However, I know of no other records
indicating this to be the case and it would seem that the name Cobthach (or
Coththaigh) Fionn was used before the Norsemen came.

O'Hartu makes a strong point for the similarity of the Irish language with
the ancient Scythian and claims this (the Celtic language) was the Adamic lang-
uage of Eden, the Irish is the most pure form of it, and is a key to the modern
languages of Europe.
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THE COFFEY FAMILY COAT OF ARMS

The Coat of Arms (see frontispiece) consists of a shield, the surface
(escutheon) of which is green with a broad band (fesse) across the middle (either
straight or chevron-shaped) in ermine between three covered cups (coons) which
are gold. The green refers to a religious temperament, eternity, everlasting
life, and fecundity. Gold is the metal denoting strength, authority and wealth,
vwhile exrmine is the fur denoting judgeship or a judicial position.

The coon or Celtic drinking cup was a very important charge. Since each
treaty or agreement was sealed by a drink it became a symbol of friendship, honor
and peace. The three cups in the Coffey arms allude to the peace of Tara, the
great capitol of ancient Eire, between the clans O'Brien, O'Niel and McCarthy.

The motto, which can be translated "Not by Providence but by Conquest" or
“Not Prudence but Victory", is a canting upon the name inasmuch as 0'Cobththaigh
means "victory" or "conquest". .

The mantle or decorative matter around the shield has no special shape.

This is left to the taste and discretion of the artist. It takes its name from
a cloak or mantle which the mounted knight wore suspended from his helmet. This
mantle would become cut and slashed in combat and the knight was very proud of
these rents,

The shape of the shield is also immaterlal and left
to the discretion of the artist. The one pictured to the
right is one which is more commonly pictured in bocks on
coats of arms, as for example, the book by MacLysaght.2
The one figured in the frontispiece originally came from
a tracing in the Office of the Ulster King of Amms (for
Ireland) in Dublin,

The crest of the Arms shows a nude man riding a
dolphin, The latter symbolized the sea and the naked
man represented the family., This is another canting as

t)
the man riding the dolphin signifies conquest of the sea, 263?25;
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CHART II. One possible line of descent for the Coffey family.
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Anyone who has teen associated with the Coffey family history for sometine
will tell you that the Tirst known Coffey to come to America was John Coffee who
came to Eiizabeth City county, Virginia in 1637 as an indentured servant, tne
ratentee being Nicholas Hilll. However, Greer made a mistake in copying his
name from the Virginia land patents, a mistake that was picked up by Kugentz
when she compiled her books? on these land palkents. 3he records his name as
“John Coffin or 3Scoffin." In order to rectify the discrepancy I went to the
original records and found that Nugent had made a correct copy; the name is sziven
as Coffin at first and thern at the end the name is repeated oui appears to nave
an old style "s" in front of it so as to make it Scoffin. At any rate, it is not
Coffee or Coffey. It may be that Greer assumed Coffin was meant to be Coffee,
However, Coffin is an entirely separate name, dating from early times, and per-
haps more common than the name Coffey in America.

It seems rather ironic when we consider that Coffey genealogists have for
years accepted John Coffee as the earliest Coffey in America, some even making
him the ancestor of Edward Coffey of Essex county and giving him one or two wives,
either Mary Jolliffe and/cr Rebecca Ireland. I have never seen any records that
could document the above marriages or individuals. A William Ireland does appear
in York county Virginia records, 1633-48, The earliest Jolliffe I have found was
a John? in Nansemond and Isle of Wight counties in 1653.

Many people have proposed, as mentioned above, that this fictional John
Coffey was the grandfather, or even the father, of Edward Coffey., Others have
Edward coming directly from Ireland in about 1680 or 1690. Thus some have postu-
lated that he was born anywhere from 1650 to 1680. This all appears to be specu-
lation as I have yet to see a single record indicating one possibility or the
other, The first record of Edward Coffey in Virginia appears to be the will of

33M§§fg§g Mosely, dated January 6, 1699 in which he gives to his "servant Zd. Coffe
one heifer of 2 years old." The will was proved in Essex county court April 16,
1700 and on September 10 of that year Edward Coffey received a judgmentu from the
¥osely estate for his freedom, corn, and clothes, My own "guess" is that Edward
came to Virginia from Ireland during the Williiamite Confiscation mentioned in
chapter 2, perhaps around 1690 or a few years later, and was transported by Be-

Ry
Mosely. If this is so, why is he not mentioned in the land patent books?
17
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If one examines these carefully he will see that an individual received sc such
land for transporting so many people but not in all cases are the names of ali
these peorle listed, -E&é:;ﬂ Mosely transporied many people into Cld Rapra-
hannock county from about 1660 until and including the 1690s. It is iogical
that he transported his servant Sdward. As we shall see later, zdwaxd Trobably
lived on land owned (or once owned) by iosely.

But before we proceed with an account of Edward lets return to other pocs-
sible early Coffey immigrants. Although Nugent mentions? some others by the name
of Coffey (variant spellings) in the 14COs there seems to te no other reccrds of
them. The only Coffey for wnom I have seen a record this early is Abrahaa Coffee
who signed a petition about 1683 in New Kent (now King & queen) county.”’ This may
be the same man Greer lists as Abr. Cofface and Nugent as Coffall being trans-
ported in 1653, The land patent for this transportation was "on the south side
of the freshes of the York river right against Totopotomoy." Abraham is ment-
ioned further in Chapter 7.

Nugent also list36 some Coffeys who were transported in the 1700s: A Thomas
to Isle of Wight county in 1711, a Charles to King and Queen county in 1714, and
an Edward to Isle of Wight county in 1726, I have no further information on any
of these Coffeys and they were all too late to be the ancestors of our line,

The next record we have of Edward, our progenitor, comes on March 10, 1700
when Thomas Powell of 3ittingbourne Parish, Essex county Virginia made his will.’
In it he bequeathed 1 shllling to his daughter Ann Coffey, a witness being Ed-
ward Coffey., Thus Edward had married Ann Powell by 1700. Unfortunately some *
genealogists have used this date for the marriage. Edward made his w1118 (see
Appendix A) February 14, 1715/16 and all of his children were under 16. Al-
though it wasn't probated until November 20, 1716 he died before July 16 as on
that date John and Edward Coffey, his sons, concluded a land transaction? for
200 acres on Occupatia Creek with John Mosely, son and heir of Edward Mosely and
one-third was set aside for John and Edward's mother Ann Coffey as a widow's
dower. The deed lacks explanation but it seems probable that this may have been
land the Coffeys lived on and which was willed by Edward to his sons although
he did not have clear title. This deed is a lengthy one and apparently gave
clear title to John and Edward with the additional payment of 8,000 pounds of
tobacco (a common medium of exchange in those days),

The purpose of the above lengthy account is to show that John and Edward,
the sons of Zdward, Sr., were not 16 on February 14, 1716 tut were on July 16.

It would thus appear that they must have been twins and born between February and
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July 1707, 'We can thus affix tihe date of Zdwaxd and Ann's marrviage as prebvably

being in 16399, at least not later than that.
Ann Fowell and Zer Ancestry

While on the subject of Ann it would be well to mention nere a 1ittie cf ner
ancesiry. According to Lucas10 her father Thomas Powell was born about 1630 and
married Mary Flace before 1657. However, I believe there is sume misinterpre-
tation of dates hexe, Mary's father, ~rancis Flace, who had aj;parently lived in
Isle of Wight county, patented6 360 acres on the "north side of tre Freshes of
the Rappahannock River" on Seﬁtember 7, 1654 for transporting 6 persons. On
August 11, 1655, in making his will, he conveyed11 this land and some cattle by
deed of gift t¢ "my daughter Mary Place when she arrives at 1% years." On 3ep-
tember 30, 1666/7 (actually, probably 1667) she and her husband Thomas Fowell
sold12 this land to James Coghill for "9 barrells of good Indian ccrn and divers
other considerations.” This indicates that (1) Mary had arrived at the age of 1€
and (2) she had married Thomas Powell. It seems unlikely that these events nad
taken place much before this date. We might therefore fix the birth of Mary Flace
as taking place in about 1648 or 164G, agreeing with Mrs. Hiden in her articlel-
on this family.

The Powells seemed to have been an early English family in Virginia. A John
and a Nathaniel Powell were involved in the discovery of Chesapeake Bay in 16(8.
At least 72 Powells had come to Virginia by 1666} and of these, 10 were named
Thomas., Another, more complete source2 shows that 8 Thomas Powells were trans-
ported into Old Rappahannock and adjacent counties (Lancaster and Westmoreland)
between 1650 and 1683, a span of only 33 years. The reader can thus see that it
is not easy to see which Thomas was ours. Mrs. Hiden13. and other authors who
have followed her, have suggested that our Thomas was the son of William and
Elizabeth Powell of Isle of Wight county, this William being the son of another
Thomas Powell of the same county. They cite William's will in Isle of Wight
county in 1695 in which he names a son Thomas. I tend to disccunt this connect-
ion decause (1) it would seem strange that a man, in 1695, wculd will a large traci
of land to his son who was himself perhaps 65 (at least 55) years old and well
established on his own land in another ccunty, and (2) at least one Thomas Powell
persists in Isle of Wight county records long after our Thomas would have moved
to Rappahannock. Mrs. Hiden's main premise for believing as she does is that many
Nansemond and Isle of Wight families moved to Rappahannock about this time.
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L
Lucas“O states that wur Thomas was probably a brother of tie John rowell

who rerried (1) “ary Coshill (2) Marwaret Coghill, and {(3) Jane Lucas (Jchn born
1644, died 16GE-9 in Essex county). There was also a4 Thomas Foweil in neighbor-
ine Lancaster county in the 1650s and 1660s who had a son Thomas., However, he
must be culed cut as cur ancestor since he had a wife Anne who died by 1464 and
Thomas remarriedih “rs. Jane Catesby in late 1664 or early 1é65. A Howeil
rowell, mentioned several times in deed records, was protatly either a son or

a brother to this Thomas. This may also be the Thomas who patented S00 acres

on the north side of Rappahannock river, “bteing a neck of land commonly called
Powell's Quarter tounded ...on the eastermost with Deep Creek" lctober 24, 165C
for transporting 10 persons. This land would be in present Lancaster county just
south of present Richmond county (then parf of Rappahai.nock ),

The adove teing the case, and looking at every other land transaction and
importation in the same critical way, our Thomas Fowell may more likely be the
one transported16 by William Mosely in 1663 for which “osely received 1157 acres
on the south side of Rappahannock river in 3ittingbourne Farish. He nay ever.
have been a servant of this Mosely for a time. If so, it must have teen for only
a short time for it is generally thought that our Thomas is the ore who purc'nased17
50 acres in Rappahannock county on Tignor's creek from John Mills Decemder 12,
1665, It may well have been about this time or in the next year'or two when he
married Vary Tlace,

The sum of all this is, that we can't be certain who our Thomas Fowell is
and where he came from. 3uffice it to say that I think the long-held idea of his
origin from William Fowell of Isle of Wight county is not entireiy tenadle ard I feel it
more likely that he was an immigrant from England to Virginia (specifically Cld
Rappahannock county) sometime after 1650 and most likely about 1663. He was prodb -
ably thus born about 1640, not 1630 as generally listed,

Thomas purchased18 more land in 1668 and he and Mary conveyed 100 acres to
their oldest son Honorias in 1694, From this and later deeds in Essex county and
from Thomas' Willlg. made March 10, 1700 and proved April 10, 1761, we learn the
names of his children, They are as follows:

1. Honorias - born about 1669, died after 1750, md. 1694 Mrs. Joyce Lamberth,
widow of George. 20
2. Place - d. abt 1715, md. Mary bvef 1705.

. Thomas, Jr. - b, abt 1680, d. by 1739, md Mary Cibson.
- William - b, abt 1682 (under 21 in Thomas' 1700 will), d. 17C5, unnd.

3

(1

5. Frances -~ nothing known.

6. Elizabeth - md. John 3almon.
7. Ann - md. Edward Coffey,

M-’»},,j

lm\
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tost of Thomas' descendants went west - Orange, then Amherst county Virginia
and into North Carolina and Kentucky. It is of some interest to note that Hon-
orias' son John named a son Ambrose and this may be the origin of the name of
Ambrose Coffey, son of James and Elizabeth (Cleveland) Coffey (see Chapter 5).

Mary (Place) Powell died21 in Richmond county about the middle of December
171C. About the only other item of interest to note about Thomas is that a
Major Thomas Powell of Rappahannock county was wounded in the taking of Jamestoewn
in Bacon's Rebellion’ (about 1676). We have no proof but this might well have
been our Thomas.

Returning now to Ann Powell, after her husband Edward Coffey died in 1716
she married Rovert Dooling (or Dulin), the ceremony cccuring before March 19, 1717.22
They had two children, William, born about 1720 and Thomas, born avout 1725. 1In
Ann's will?3 nade October 30, 1744 in 3t. Ann's Parish, Essex county she leaves
all her possessions to the two "Dooling" boys and her daughter Annisters (Ann)
Coffey and Annister's son, James Coffey. It would seem, from the language of
the will, that Annisters was living with her mother. We know of no marriage of
Annisters and unless she did marry some unknown Coffey the likelyhood exists that
her son James was illigitimate, For a possibility of what may have happened to
this James see Chapter 7. From the date of birth of Ann's last child it would
appear that she was probably born about 1685, or a wa.years earlier,

The Children of Edward and Ann (Powell) Coffey

Edward Coffey was a tobacco planter and had land on branches of Occupatia
Creek (or swamp) in Essex county.24 When he died the inventory of his estate
listed a valuation of 45 pounds, 10 shillings, and 9 pence, His w1118 lists 6
children. He leaves all of his land to his 2 sons John and Edward, a cow each
to John and daughter Martha (it is written Marther) and all the tenables to his
wife Ann, He then names his 6 children as John, Edward, Marther, Ann, Austes
(we think this should be Austin), and Elizabeth. There has been some difference
of opinion over the dates of birth for these children. If we accept the premise
that John and Edward were twins, born in 1700, and allowing for the "normal 2
years" between children we might list their birth years as Martha 1702, Ann 1704,
Austes 1706 and Elizabeth 1708, However, such is probably not the case. Ann
was young and still able to bear children. It seems unlikely there would be the
period of 1708 to 1716 without any children. Also, since Edward didn't leave
anything to Ann, Austin and Elizabeth it is probable that they were quite young
and Edward only thought of leaving something to his older children who would soon
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e out on their own. 3ince Zlizabeth married Jchn Cleveland who was born 171 —m,
(see chapter 6) it's quite posiibie shne wasn't born until 17!% as some have suj- -
rested, The birthyears as iziven in the chart at the end of this chaple s i3 there-
fore quite hypothetical except that Jchn and zdward must have been vorn in 1707
Tor reasons given earlier,

tdward Coffey, Jr.

vohn will be the subject of the next chapter, Llet's now turn our atte-tion
to the other children, each in order, starting witn Edward. se know very 1ittle
about he and his wife Crace Cleveland. Edward sold<> his share of the land in
Essex county to his brother John in 1737 and aprarently moved to Crange county
where he witnessed a deed in 1740. The Cleveland family lived in Crange county
at taat time so this is probably where he met and married Crace. We do not know
wnen this marriage took place tut Grace Cleveland is mentioned in some Cranse
county records in 1731&26 so it wWould have been after this time and probably also
after 1737. There is also a brief mention of Edward in Caroline county records
in 174527 tut 1t is not known if he lived there. On January 20, 1751 he bought®’

150 acres in Anson county North Carolina on Jones Creek on the south side of

the Fee Dee River. A year and a half later on August 15, 1752 he sold it and ‘@3
apparently moved back to Orange county Virginia. He is listed there on the 1749

list of tithables and again in 1754, The family must have socn moved over to
Fredexricksville Farish in Albemarle county as Edward is menticned a number of times

in these records?’ from 1769 to 17?74, Vost of these relate to payments to Zdward
for care which he provided for Alexander Cleveland, evidently his father-in-law.

As to the children of Edward and Grace we have no information. However, I
believe there are some otherwise-unaccounted-for Coffeys who could well be their
children. The most likely is a Cleveland Coffey (wife klizabeth) who appears in
various Orange and Albemarle county records from 1762 to 177% (and possibly one
record in 1791, He would have had to have been born by the early 1740s. This
may also be the Cleveland Coffey who had a land entryBO in 1778 on Zack's Fork
of Lower Creek in Burke county North Carolina.

Another possible son of Edward and Grace is the Benjamin who was born in
Virginia in 1763 and is on the Burke county North Carolina census from 1790 to
1850 (Caldwell in 1850). His wife is Leah, born about 1760 in Virginia., The Leah
Coffey who married Francis Hickman April 19, 1798 in Jefferson county Tennessee
may be their daughter. They also had a son Cleveland, born about 1782 with whom * ﬂwﬁ
they were living in 1850. The name Benjamin probably came from the Cleveland

*

family, Grace having a brother by that name (see Chapter 6). The chief problen
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with this Benjamin being a son of Edward and Grace is that Grace would have been
47 when Benjamin was born, rather late in those days.

Two other possible children of Edward are James Coffey who is on the 1785 *
enumeration of Botetourt county Virginia and William Coffey, found in some fecords
of Montgomery county Virginia, 1781-1785. It is also possible that these two
are children of Peter and Susannah Coffey of Prince Edward county (see chapter 7),
but I have found no indication for one or the other. However, the William Coffey ¥
on Buckingham county tax lists, 1783-1797, is quite probably Peter's son. He also
had land in Prince Edward county and had sons Abner, David and probably Pleasant.

Still other possible children of Edward are Jesse who is in Wilkes county
North Carolina records 1779-1786, and an Isaac or Isailah Zarrah, also in Wilkes *
county 1782-1796 (see chapter 4 for another possibility of the parentage of these
two). The Jesse in Wilkes county up to 1786 may well be the same one who is on *
the Pendleton county South Carolina census of 1790 and 1800 and the father of
six boys, Cleveland, Edward, Joel, Elijah, Elisha, and John who moved to Rabun
county Georgia31 in 1821, The use of the names Cleveland and Edward strengthen
the possibility that Jesse was a son of Edward., 3ince he was over L4s at the
time of the 1800 census he would have been born in 1755 or before. Jesse is not
on the 1810 census of Pendleton county tut a Nancy (over 45) is. This may well
be his wife, Jesse having died prior to 1810. The number and age of children in
the family are about right if this is the case.

Martha Coffey

Martha (Patsy) married Joshua Stapp (or Stepp).32’33 He was a son of Abra-
ham and Dorothy (Moss) Stapp (or Stepp) of Essex county Virginia., Abraham made
his wi113¥ October 20, 1710 and it was recorded April 18, 1714.° Henry Scalf
wrote a book3> about this family which is both a help and a problem for us.
Abraham's ehildren3u were Abraham Jr., William, Jacob, Joshua, Joseph, James,
Ruth, Rebecca, and Martha. Joshua was the most prominent and according to Scalf
was born about 1688. He lists his marriage to Martha Coffey as occurring in
1709/10 and her birth as 1690, We know this is not possible as Martha couldn't
have been born before 1702 as we have previously seen. I have studied over the
information provided by Mr. Scalf and, although no proof is given I will ack-
nowledge that Joshua Stapp could have been born by 1688. However, I can see no
reason vwhy he needed to be married by 1709 or 10 and start having children. In-
deed, the information given would tend to fit better if the first children were
born in the 1720s. I would tend to place the marriage of Joshua and Martha as
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occurring about 1718-21 and the first child born about 1720-22, This is where
it helps to place Martha Coffey's birth in 1702, not 1704 or even 1708 as some
have it, If the above conclusions are not true, then it seems to me that the
only other alternative is to loock at Martha as a second wife of Joshua. There
seems to be no evidence for this however,

The children33 of Joshua and Martha were as follows (I shall not use the *
birthdates Scalf gives since they do not fit the conclusions I have drawn):

1, John - eldest son, d. prior to May 21, 175i; md. Ann 3almon
2. Joseph - md, Elizabeth Lucas

3. Joshua Jr. - 4, Jul 1814; md. Hannah Durham

L., Thomas - md. Ann Lucas

5. James

6. Anester - md. Capt. William Sims

7. Eve - md. Anthred Salmon

8. Elizabeth - d., 17953 md., William Morris

Joshua's will is dated December 19, 1782 and according to Scalf he died just
before March 27, 1783, Martha is supposed to have died in 1772. They apparently
spent most of their mature years in Orange county Virginia where they also died,

Annister(s) and Austin Coffey

Dr. Laurence H. Coffey in his early work-2 on the Coffeys 1lists the spouse
of Anister (his spelling) as Shenalt, tut in his 1list of the children
of Edward and Ann Coffey he doesn't mention the son Austin (Austes in Edward's
will). Since Dr. Coffey's study of the family others have listed Austin as
marrying a Miss Shenalt. Not having other proof I am also listing Austin this
way and assuming that Annister was not married. As was mentioned in connection
with the will of Ann Powell Coffey Dooling, Annister had a son named James
Coffey, tut no Coffey or other husband is known for her., James may be the one
who later turns up in Surry and Stokes counties North Carolina after a brief
time in Pittsylvania county Virginia. Or, he may be the James Coffey in Bote-
tourt county Virginia in 1785 which we have tentatively listed as a son of Edward.
We really do not have enough information to be certain one way or the other,

We might also note here in passing that the naming of Annister's son James
might give some credence to the thohght that this could be the name of Edward's
father., The use of this name for John's first son (see chapter %) and possibly
also for a son of Edward 1s also some evidence, However, the name James appears
in both the Cleveland and the Graves lines as well,

Returning to Austin, one reason to believe this was his true name is that
some of John and Jane (Graves) Coffey's descendants used the name Austin. Where
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Edward and Ann Coffey got the name we do not know tut there was a Daniel and
Susannah Austin family in Essex county contemporary with Edward, and others be-
fore 1700. Of course the name might really be Austes and the person be a female.
However, I do not believe the welght of what little evidence we have is in favor
of this idea. Assuming then that this child was a male named Austin and married
a Miss Chenault (this is the correct spelling) what happened to him? We really
haven't a trace in the records as far as I am aware. A Stephen Chenault family
occurs in the early 1700s in Essex county and is later in Orange county (175C).
¥hen John and Jane (Graves) Coffey sold their land in Essex county (see chapter 4)
it was sold in 2 parcels, 1 in 1745 and the other in 1747. 1In the first instance
the witnesses included William Duling and William Chenault, in the second instance
William Duling and Stephen Chenault Jr. Thus we see the closeness of the Duling
(or Dulin), Chenault, and Coffey families in Essex county. Presumably Austin
would have been there too, tut if so he apparently failed to create any records.
He may have died as a young man or perhaps he did move out of the area. It has
been suggested that he might have been the father of‘Chesley Coffey (see chapter
7) who probably was early in Albemarle county and may have gone to North Carolina,
but of whom we also have no records., However, Austin may have been too young to
be the father of Chesley.

It 1s of course possible that without creating public records he did manage
to have several children and if so, some of those which I have suggested as
children of Edward might be his.

Elizabeth Coffey

Genealogical records often get confused and many have confused Elizabeth
and Martha, saying it was the latter who married John Cleveland. However, it
definitely was the younger Coffey daughter, Elizabeth, whom John Cleveland married.
This couple lived most of their lives at Blue Run, COrange county Virginia and
were the parents of several famous boys, most notably Colonel Benjamin Cleveland
of Revolutionary War fame.35 The Coffeys and Clevelands were neighbors in Vir-
ginia and later in North Carolina and there were at least 2 other Coffey-Cleveland
marriages., Because of this close relationship I have devoted a chapter (6) to
them in addition to some information in chapters 5 and 7.
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VIRGINIA

MAP SHOWING PART OF "LOWER" VIRGINIA,

From 0ld Rappahannock county, 1656-1692, was

created all of Essex and Richmond counties and part of
Westmoreland, king George, Stafford, Caroline, and Spotts-
ylvania counties,
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CHART 2
VITAL DATA OF EDWARD COFFEY AiD ANN POWELL

Edward Coffey

b, abt 1670 (?), prob. in Ireland

d. bef 16 Jul 1716 (will made 14 Feb 1716, proved 20 Kov 1716, Essex co., VA),

m. abt 1699 Ann Powell, Essex co., VA (dau of Thomas Powell and Hary Flace, b.
abt 1683-5, Essex co., VA; d. Oct-Dec 1744 (will made 30 Oct, proved 18
Dec) St. Anne's Parish, Essex co., VA; she md., 2nd bef 19 Mar 1717 Robert
Dulin).

children:

1.

2.

John Coffey *
b. bef 16 Jul 1700, Essex co. VA
d. Jan/Feb 1775 (will dated 31 Mar 1774, proved March 1775), Albemarle
co. VA
m. abt 1728 Jane Graves (dau of John & Hannah Graves), Essex co., VA
childrens see cahpter 4
Edward Coffey
b, bef 16 Jul 1700 - twin of John (?), Essex co., VA
d., after 1774, prob. Albemarle co. VA
m, abt 1737-40 Grace Cleveland (dau of Alexander Cleveland and Milley
Presley 7; b, 1 Sep 1716, Gloucester co., VA), Orange co. VA,
children: see text, p. 22 for discussion of possible and probable children.
Martha (Patsy) Coffey
b, abt 1702, Essex co., VA
d. aot 1772, Orange co. VA
m., abt 1718-21 Joshua Stapp or Stepp, Essex co., VA
children: (see text for full discussion)
i, John, b, abt 1720-22, d. prior to 21 May 1751; md Ann Salmon.
2, Joseph, md, Elizabeth Lucas; d. after 1775.
3. Joshua Jr., d. Jul 1814; md Hannah Durham.
4, Thomas, md. Ann Lucas
5. James
6, Annester, md. 6 Aug 1751 Capt. William Simms
7. Eve, md. Anthred Salmon
8. Elizabeth, d. 1795; md 1745 William Morris
9. Brockman® says there was a dau imd. Wilhout, a dau md. Creel, and
a dau md. Hubbard, He also says James married Elizabeth Lucas.

Annester (Ann) Coffey

b, abt 1708 (?), Essex co, VA

m. unknown, prob., unmd.

one known son, James Coffey

Austin (or Austes) Coffey

b, abt 1710 (?), Essex co. VA

m. Miss Chenault, prob., dau of Stephen Chenault,Sr.
Elizabeth Coffey

b, abt 1714, Essex co. VA

d. 1770, Orange co. VA

m. 20 Apr 1734 John Cleveland (brother of Grace, above),
children: see chapter 6

a. Brockman, William Everett, Orange County Virginia Families. Vol III. Minneap-
OliS, MN. 1959| ppo 100“10“‘.



CHAPTER 4

COLONIAL VIRGINIA PLANTERS -

JOHN COFFEY AND JANE GRAVES

"The good old Dominion, .92
the mother of us all" .'~...:

g;. ~«~ Thomas Jefferson
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The Coffey and Graves families of eighteenth century Virginia were probably
typical of their times: planters, members of the established Church of Englandl.
and slave holders.2 As mentioned in Chapter 3, John obtained land in Essex county
in 1716 when probably only 16 years of age. This land was held jointly with his
brother Edward until 1737 when Edward sold his share to John. About 1728 John
Coffey married Jane Craves, the daughter of John Graves, deceased, and his wife
Hannah.3

The Graves Family

The origin of our Graves ancestors is far from clear. This family was a
very early and prominent family in Virginia, the first member being Captain
Thomas Graves of the Jamestown Colony in 1608. iiany of his descendants are
known and much has been written4 about them. These accounts include some who
lived in Old Rappahannock (later Essex) county and include more that one of the
name John Graves, Unfortunately we cannot identify our John Graves as one of
these nor can we (at least as yet) trace him to Capt. Thomas Graves, According
to Greer’ at least 21 Graves had come to Virginia by 1666. Nugent6 lists others
after this date including a James in 1667, a John in 1669 and 2 Johns in 1688,
It is possible that one of the latter was the immigrant ancestor.

7 who have looked into our Graves ancestry claim that

Coffey genealogists
the parents of John Graves (d. 1720) were James Graves and his wife Jean Mayfield,
She was the daughter of Robert Mayfield, Sr. and his wife Sarah.8 James Graves
made his will January 10, 1724 and it was proved April 20, 1725, so he outlived
his son (no children are mentioned in his will, only his wife). This lineage is
based on a number of "ifs" and “"ands" and it seems unusual that the deaths of 3
generations occur within 10 years and that there are no records of James Graves
in Rappahannock or Essex Camntles before 1710. Records of John Graves date from
1675 in 0ld Rappahannock county including one who was a constable in 1684, But
these could be for one of the Johns in the Thomas Graves line rather than the
John, son of James who might be of a much later arrival in Essex ounty. Since
we have no better records than these I am following others in this lineage and
proposing the following possible dates:

Robert Mayfield, b. abt 1635-45; d. 1715; md abt 1659-64 Sarah .

)|
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dau, Jane or Jean Mayfield, b, abt 1660-65; md abt 1674-79 James Graves who
was b, abt 1650-1660 & d. 1724 or 1725,
" son John, b, abt 1675-80; d. 17203 md abt 1698-1702 Hannah $

their children;
1. James
2. Benjamin
3. Martha
4, Ann
5. Jean or Jane

The above is the order named in the will and apparently all were unmarried
(or at least without children) and probably underage when the will was made on
September 4, 1719.(See appendix B for wills of Graves and Mayfield,)

I do not have further information on any of them except Jane (familiarly
called Jean) who married John Coffey about 1728. 3he could have been born as
late as 1710-14,

John and Jane Coffey: The Essex County Years

As we follow the moves of John and Jane Coffey and their children it might
be useful for the reader to refer to the map on page 33.

Nothing is known about the 1life and activities of John and Jane Coffey in
Essex county Virginia except that several children were born there. Chart 4
gives the vital data for their family, We do not know the date and order of
birth for all of the children btut it probably isn't the order given in the will
(see appendix B ), We know Thomas was born in 1742 and Reuben most probably
in 1744 so John and Edmond could not have both been born between Thomas and
Reuben, in fact, probably neither of them. Also, the date of birth of the two
daughters is not known. Most genealogists have followed the order given by
Laurence Coffey in his 'book10 on Thomas Coffey, However, it is not likely that
William was the youngest son as given in that work since William was mentioned
with James in the will and quite likely had been established for sometime on
his own, The order and dates I have followed seems to me to be the most probable,
based upon the many accounts I have seen, but it should not be considered the
last word.

The first child, James was born in 1729, The date of July 4 comes from the
records of David A, Strange of 3an Rafael, California but I know of no other
source for this date. Certalinly none of the early Coffey genealogists had more
than a year date, Since my direct line comes through James, he and his family
will be the subject of the next chapter. The balance of this chapter will be
concerned with the other children of John and Jane Coffey.
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Map of Virginia showing progressive moves of the Coffey family., 1. Edward
Coffey family; 1,2,3, & 4. John Coffey family; 4 & 5. James Coffey family.

William Coffey

I am suggesting that William was the second child, born about 1731. He
married Elizabeth Osborne (variously spelled) before 1759 and they spent most
of their life on their 923 acres on the Tye River in that part of Amherst county
that later became Nelson county (see map on page 35). They apparently lived
for a time in Augusta county where there are deed records11 vwhich identify him
from 1780 to 1792 and as late as 1819, and the land sales of his estate into the
1830s (unless this is another William for whor we haven't accounted), Although
the estate record of John Coffey 3r., proved after the death of Jane in 1792,
does not list William, he did not die until about 1828.12 1If al) these dates
are correct he was 97 years old when he died.

William and Elizabeth’s children, to the extent known, are listed in Chart
4-A, However, we should here comment on one in particular. The oldest son,
Osborn, was a Revolutionary War soldier, serving 6 months as a private and 18
nmonths as a sargeant. After the war he moved to Casey county Kentucky where he *
received a pension for his services.13 His son Jesse was a Colonel in the War
of 1812, a state senator in 1834, and a member of the delegation that wrote the
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9 )
~=uek state constitution in June 1850, a month tefore re died, -~
The atove Jesse had a son C.R. who relates!> that Gsborn's fainer (William)
died in Kelson county Virginia (proved by will)., A William Coffey was a sergeant
in the same company cf the Gih Vireinia repimert as Csbern, who was then e pri-
16

vate, It is zenerally conceded that this William was Csborn's father. Forrest

Arnold of 3eattle, Washinzton is a descendant of this Csborn, son of William,
John Ccffey

The third child of John and Jjane Coffey was provally John, born about 1733

in Essex county. He is reportedlo to have had 2 wives, (1) Dorcas Carter and

(2) Naney Richardson, but we have no positive identificaticn cf his cnildren or
. whether he had children by both wives. He is mentioned in the Albemarle county
Virsinia deed books17 as John, Jun, from 176C toc 1765 and then in Arherst county18
in 1767, There are a number of John Coffeys later in Wilkes and Burke counties

Yerth Carolina and it seems most likely that he is the one who had two land entriesl?
in 1779 on Blair's Fork of Lower Creek in Burke county, next ic Jenjamin Coffey

(see map, page ). A John Coffey, 3r. had a land entry in Wilkes county on the *
Yadkin River in 1791 (#591). HKe is also on the tax lists there in 1787 and 1788
and as John 3r. on the 1800 and 1810 census, The terms 3r. and Jr. were some-

times used for an older and a younger person of that name but not necessarily

father and son, That is probatly tnhe case here. In seeking information con what
happened to this John one possibility is that he cculd ve the Jchn Coffey who
received bounty land on "the waters of 3ilver Creek" in Lincoln county Kentucky

(now in Madison county) for his services in ithe French and Indian iar.20 However,
the record for this bounty land seems to indicate that John may never have taken

ur residency cn the land but instead signed it over to someone eise. There is

also a John Coffey on the 1800 census (tax list) of Knox county Kentucky for

which we have not accounted.

It seems to me most likely, however, that he left North Caroulina for Tenn-
essee and is the John Coffey over 45 on the 1810 census of Grainger county, This
suppositiocn is strengthened by the fact that the one person siio is mcst likely a
son of John, Meredith Coffey, went to Grainger county Tennessee (from Wilkes
county North Carclina) by 1798%1 and remained there until his death in 1838,2%2
¥eredith married Esther (or Hester) and his chiidren (Chart 4-B) in-
cluded a daughter Dorcas (another indication that Meredith was a son of John
Coffey and Dorcas Carter). After his death his land was jartitioned for his
widow and children.23
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we can only be uncertain about other children of John Coffey. Some of those
in the Wilkes-Burke counties area mentioned in chapter 3 as possibly belonging to
Edward Coffey and Grace Cleveland could in fact be children of John., Twc dau-
ghters of John may be Sally who married Benjamin Rhea and Jenny who married Levi
¥iller, both in Grainger county Tennessee. In both cases the bondsman was Mere-
dith Coffey. Thomas Coffey, age between 26 and 45 on the 1810 Grainger county

census might also be a son of John,

Edmond (Edmund) Coffey

The name is given as Edward by Laurence Coffeylo

and in some other records,
but although Edmond is more commonly found, and that is the way John Coffey gave

it in his will of 1774, there was probably an interchange of names, Withycombe24

Map of Albemarle county Virginia glarger outlined area)
and the counties derived from it (dotted lines). 1., Home
of John Coffey, North Garden, St. Anne's Parish; 2. Early
home of James Coffey; 3. Later home of James, William
and Edmund Coffey, Tye River.
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says these iwo uawes were often confused in the 17ta century (aad, we ri,ub adi, -

vrrobvably in the 18th century as well.) -
Zdmond (spelled variously with a "u" cr an "o") was probably uvoru about 1735.

He marri«d a lancy whose last name may have oceern Barnettzu or henait,2) They

lived in Amherst county Virginia cu tne Tye River,26 \see wap, . 35, prcialiy

nesr Zdmond's brother William., This land of course was later in Nelson county

where Zd.:snd made his willzh in 1807 and died in 1808. Cne of Zduord's sons was

“dmond §.Coffey16 whereas William had a scn Edmend F.Cocffey. Both also nad a

son ailliar. The entire family of Edmond is iisted in Chart 4-C, 3efore gciny on

we should mention that there are marriage records in iielsun and/or amherst county

of Coffeys who haven't been identified as belonzing tu either William or Edmend.

These are Jordan (wife Elizabeth), Jemima, and 3aily. *
Winifred Cofley

About the only thing known about the first daughter, winifred, is tnai she
married Nichclas Moran, He had a land patent of 150 acres in Amherst county list-~
ed for 1767 but lived in Albemarle county from 1763 to 1766.17 1 nave not found
them in Wilkes county North Carolina reccxrds suv they may have remained in Virginia.

She was prooably born about 173G in Essex county but we have no sure xnowledre ™
of this.,
Tnomas Coffey

Thomas Coffey was born March 7, 1742 in Essex county and an entire book has
been written about his descendants.lo
£lizateth 3mith by whom he had 6 children. This was in Albenarle county and the
minutes of the Albemarle Baptist Church?’ show that in 1773 a list of members
included Thomas and Elizabeth Coffey. &lizabeth's father was Thomas 3mith of
Albemarle county.

After Elizabeth died and sometime between 1775 and 1780 Thomas married
Sarah (3ally) Fields, daughter of Richard Fields and Elizabeth lurrell, About
1778-1780 they moved to Wilkes county North Carolina.19 Here they settled on
the upper waters of the Yadkin River below the present town of Fatterson (now in

He married twice, the first wife bveimp

Caldwell county - see map, page 39). His first land entry was in January 1779

for 25 acres, He lived here the rest of his life, hal 9 more children by 3ally

Fields, and died in 1825.23 See Chart 4-D for Thomas' family. I have not gone

into great detail on most of his descendants because the names of these can be

found in the book to which I have previously referred. However, some comment ™
should be made concerning the son Jesse, Laurence Coffey in nis book on Thomas

.
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Coffey says tnat Jesse died single, and Jesse is not men%ioned in ‘nomas' will,

{see appendix _) However, there is a marriage record of a Jjesse Coffey to wini- .
fred Crumpto:n December 22, 1321 in Wilkes county, Larkin Coffey provided tae
vond. Jesse and Winifred are on the 1350 census of Gilmer ccunty {(now Fickens),
Georsia where he is listed as age 52, 3everal descendants have unsuccessfully
sought the parents of this Jesse and some now believe him to be the Jesse, son
of Thomas and 3ally. He is adout the right age and since Larkin (another son
of Thomas, only a few years younger than Jesse) provided the bond, and we cannot
place this Jesse in any other family in Wilkes county, it all seems quite plausible,
Ferhaps Thomas did not provide for Jesse since he had already left the area,

“ost of the children of Thomas remained around the Wilkes-Burke county area
of liorth Carolina tut some went to Indiana., The most prominent of these was
Reuben, a Baptist minister. He sold the Thomas Coffey land where he lived and
with his wife Polly Dowell and 16 children moved to Indiana in 1832 tu “get inte
the nearcest state where slavery was prohibited." Reuben was in part respcnsible
for the founding of Franklin College, a Baptist institution in Indiana. FHis
family settled in Cwen and Monroe counties, indiana,?9

It may interest some to know that two sons of Thomas, 3mith and Willian, *

married nieces of Daniel Boone.10

The Move to Spottsylvania County and the Birth of the Last Three Cnildren

Of the 200 acre parcel of land which John and Jane Coffey.owned in Essex
county 100 acres were sold in 1745 and the remainder in 17b7.30 They were living
in Spottsylvania when both deeds were recorded. 1In an even earlier recoru John
Coffey of 3t. Goerge rfarish, 3pottsyivania county, witnessed31 a deed in that
county on October 2, 1744, Thus he was there by that date wt, although John
and Jane may have moved to 3pottsylvania before his mother Ann died (protably
November 1744) they did not sell the land until after her death. It seems likely
that Reuben may have been born in Essex county before they moved tut since we
have no real way of knowing I am listing his birth as occurring in issex or 3potts-
ylvania county.

Reuben has been much confused with his nephew Reuben, son of James (see chapter
5). The Reuben here discussed married Sally Scott, probably in Albemarle county. =
He was not in the Revolutionary War (as far as we know), and moved to Burke county
North Carolina by 1778.32 He and 3ally's home was in the Globe settlement on the
3t. John's River (now in Caldwell county - see map, page 39). Here he died in
1818, as did his wife in October 1837.33 Thelr children, and some other descendants
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are listed in Chart 4~E., Most of them went to Owen county Indiana where there
might be additional confusion with the family of Reubven, son of Thomas, pre-
viously mentioned,

Benjamin Coffey

Jonn and Jane's youngest son, Benjamin, was born in Spottsylvania county
Iirginia in 174??4 We first find nim in the records of Albemarle county Virginia
in 1772 when he purchases35 211 acres., He sold36 this in 1774 to John Coffey,
either his father or his brother. The same land was sold again37 to James Garland
Jr. in 1780. Why or how this land came back to Benjamin soc that it could be
sold again is not known, 3Sometime during this pericd Benjamin moved to North
Carolina, initially settling on land that would be pa:si o' Surke county, but was
at that tine a part of Rowan county. He was there38 by April 1776.34 Some cf
his descendants think he went there somewhat earljer and married Pclly Hayes in
North Carolina., There does not seem to be any Coffeys in the records of Rowan
county for that time periocd. The Hayes family lived in Albemarle county Yirginia
at the time the Coffeys did and at least some of them came to North Carolinz in
the 1770s and '80s, I think it more logical to telieve ithat Benjamin married
Polly in Albemarle county and then moved to North Carclina. Since the Albemarle
county marriage records for that time are not extant we have rno way of proving
it one way or the other,

Benjamin served 5 months in 1776 in the Revolutionary War,3“ mostly fight-
ing Cherokee Indians on the "frontier of Burke county." In December 1778 Benjamin
had 4 land entrieng on Blair's Fork of Lower Creek in Burke ccunty (see map,
page 139.,) Presumably this was land he had been living on for scme time, It was
located just over the ridge from Wilkes county and bounded land of John Coffey
(probally his brother) and Nebuzaradan Coffey (see chapter 7), and not far from
his brother James Coffey's land in Wilkes county. In March 1780 he bought land
in Wilkes county and moved there, residing in that county until the early 18003‘.‘O
The first of April, 1780 he again volunteered for Revolutionary war service,
being assigned to the Regiment commanded by Col. Benjamin Cleveland. Later that
year they marched to Kings Mt., but Benjamin missed the famous battle due to
losing his horse the night before. Because of “pains in his ankles" he was
furlowed home the first of Novem‘ber.34

A 1ist of Benjamin and Polly's children has not been found btut must have
included at least 5 sons and 4 daughters.ui The test known of these is John,
born October 15, 1??6.38 It is logical that he should be the oldest, However,
if William who meu-rie:d.l"2 Polly Coffey (daughter of Thomas) is Benjamin's son he
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may have been older because of his 1796 marriage. Also, if either Ann who married

Alexander McKinsey in 1793 or Sarah who married James Coffey in 1794 are his

daughters, they could also be older. If Benjamin came to North Carolina as early

as 1774 he could have been married by 1773 or earlier. Since he owned land in
1772 it is reasonable to think he might have been married then.

However, this
is all speculation since we have no records to prove it.

Nevertheless, I believe
it is useful to mention this as it might provide a clue of information for some-
one else to pursue,

The known, probable, and possible children and some descendants of Benjamin

and Polly are outlined in Chart 4-F. James Coffey of Riverview, Michigan and

Jeff Radcliffe of Jacksonville, Illinois are known descendants of Colby Coffey who
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was a son of John Coffey and Elizabeth Rucker., Elizabeth was a daughter to

Colby Rucker. H. Marcus Coffey of Thorn Hill, Tennessee seems tc be a descen- *
dant of George Coffey although it may be through his mother's line.h5 He is
probably also a descendant of Benjamin through his father's line, possibly by
a son Jesse.38 His great grandfather was Cleveland Coffey who was married and
living in Gralinger county Tennessee in the 1830s. This Cleveland is supposed
to be the son of a Jesse; however, we are not sure to whom this Jesse belongs.
Another Benjamin descendant is Bennie Lou Coffey Loftin of Garland, Texas. She
descends through John and Elizabeth's son Benjamin (1808) who married Nancy
Hayes., Jeanne Snodgrass Bonham of Cincinnatti, Chio descends through John and
Elizabeth's son Ausbon. 3Some of John and Elizabeth's descendants settled in
Kentucky: Madison, Rockcastle, and other counties. For further information on
these and other descendants of this line the reader is referred to Bennie
Loftin's book.38

_ Benjamin moved to Hawkins county Tennessee by 181043 (some say 1809) and
apparently 1ived there until his death in 1834, ) 30

e
M\ 4°
9 |

<
Elizabeth Coffey i,ywxﬁ

The only other child of John and Jane Coffey not yet accounted for is
Elizabeth., 3Since I have seen no records that indicate when or where she was
born I am including her last, more as a matter of convenience than knowledge
of fact., She is known to have married Thomas Fields, brother of Sally and son
of Richard Fields and Elizabeth Murrell. Elizabeth and Thomas also moved to
Wilkes county North Carolina.u6 Thomas was active in the Yadkin Baptist church,
holding the office of clerk anmd later that of a Deacon.*” The w1118 of Thomas
Fields in 1807 1lists wife Betty and children James Crumpton, William Fields,
Reuben Fields, Betsy Penley, Winifred Humphrey, Polly Humphrey, and Sally Penley,

John and Jane Coffey's Later Years

Although we have followed the children of John and Jane Coffey into North
Carolina and Tennessee we have not finished our story of John and Jane themselves,
Sometime in 1747, presumably after Benjamin was born, the Coffeys apparently
moved from Spottsylvania to Orange county. John bought 137 acres there on June
23, 1747
1751?0 When the 137 acres was purchased in 1747 John was listed as being from
Spottsylvania county, when it was sold, August 30, 17525% his residence was

and was listed as among the purchasers of an estate there in July

given as Orange county. The latter date may be when they moved to Albemarle
county. He appears in various Albemarle records in the 17508 and 1760s and re-
mained there the rest of his years. The home place was at North Garden on the
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v was made on March 31, 1774 and proved at the larcn ccurt in 17753.
died in January or February 1775. In the next lew years followins his death al’
of' the children excest william, fdmond, anc probadly Winifred moved to iwiain

Carclina. Jane also went with them and located in Wilkes county near James a.l

L’nomas.52 John's will was such that the final settlement,granted the nelrs,would
nct be nede until Jane died. This occurzed in 1?92.5(5 ( WﬁW) il bo.
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CHART 4
VITAL DATA OF THE JOHN AND JANE (GRAVES) COFFEY FAMILYY

John Coffey
b. bef 16 Jul 1700, Essex cc., VA, son of Edward Coffey and Ann Fowell

d. Jan/Feb 1775, Altemarle co., VA

children:

1,

m. abt 1728 Ja?j (Jean) Graves, dau of John Graves and Hannzh ;
=

{:,,& 1192 W | kesls NC
James Coffey

b, & Jul (?) 1729, Essex co., VA

d. 3ep/Oct 1786, Wilkes co., N.C.

m. abt 1750 Elizabeth Cleveland, Orange or Albemarle co., VA
children: see chapter 5

William Coffey

b. abt 1731, Essex co., VA

d. abt 1828, Nelson co., VA

m. abt 1758 Elizabeth Osborne

children: see chart 4-A

John Coffey

b. abt 1733, Essex co., VA

m. (1) Dorcas Carter, (2) Nancy Richardson
children: see text and chart 4-B

Edmond (Edward) Coffey

b. abt 1735, Essex co., VA

d. W.p. 25 Jul 1808, Nelson co., VA

m. Nancy Barnett

children: see chart 4-C

Winifred Coffey

b, abt 1739, Essex co., VA

m. Nicholas lMoran

Thomas Coffey

b. 7 Mar 1742, Essex co., VA

d. Apr 1825, Wilkes co., N.C.

m, (1) Elizabeth Smith, (2) Sarah (Sally) Fields
children: see chart 4-D

Reuben Coffey

b. 1744, Essex or 3Spottsylvania co., VA
d. 1818, Burke co., N.C.

m. Sally Scott

children: see chart 4-E

Benjamin Coffey ;

b. 1747, Spotsylvania co., VA

d. 4 Jan 1834, Hawkins co., TN
children: see chart 4-F

Elizabeth Coffey

b.

d. after 1807, prob. Wilkes co., N.C.
children: see text

4 This information comes from many sources including references # 7, 24, 51,
John's will, and the many papers of Abby Dyer Griffin, a descendant of child

- gl



William Coffey

b, abt 1731,

CHART L4-A oy
CHILDREN OF JOHN AND JANE COFFEY: # 2, WILLIAMP

Essex co., VA

d, bef 28 Mar 1828 (date will proved), Nelson co., VA

m. abt 1758
childrens

Elizabeth Osborne (or Osborn), prob. Albemarle co., VA

1. Osborn (various spellings)

b, 29
d. 31
m. 15

Jul 1759, VAC
Mar 1840, Casey co., KY
Feb 1783 Mary (Polly) Nightingale (b, 1761, d. 1847, dau of Mathew

Nightingale), Amherst co., VA
children:

1.

2.

7.

8.
9.

Jesse .

b. 26 May 1784

d. Jul 1850, Casey co., KY, bur Middlewrg cenm.

m, Ei) Tabitha Riffe (or Rife), (2) 16 Feb 1805 Elizabeth Rife
1785-1842), Pulaski co., KY

childrent had dau Sally and sons C.R. and Jesse Jr,

Elizabeth .
ite 9 May 1806 Christopher Riffe

Patsey ‘ x
m. George Portman®®

Matthew *

b. abt 1790, Amherst co., VA

d. prior to 1830

m. 29 Jul 1823 Nancy D. Adams (d. 1854, Schuyler co., MO), Lincoln
co. KY

Lucy

b, abt 1792

Richard N. *

b, abt 1790-95

me 29 May 1820 Catherine McCormick, Lincoln co., KY

Osborn

m. 1829 Jane Bell

William

John

m. 2 Sep 1843 Catherine Bryant, Lincoln co., KY

2. William Jr.
m. 2 Nov 1790 Polly Rippeto
3. Winnefred (Ureney?)
m. 29 Mar 1792 Thomas Hayes (bond 28 Mar)
L, Mildred (Milley)
m. 1783 Samuel Collman (Coleman)d
5. Elizabeth (Betsey)

m. 15

Sep 1795 John Bridge

b. Marriage bonds and récords of Amherst co., VA; deed rec of Amherst & Augusta
cos., VA; ref, # 16; pension papers for Osborn; Will of William, Nelson ce.

VA Will Bk.

C, P. ui?. mﬂ

¢. DAR Patriot Index

cc. DAR Lin. Bk, 119' 208"9.

d. Marrizges of Fredericksville Parish, in Papers of the Albemarle co. Hist. Soc,
Vol. 6, p. 57.
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6. Edmond F.

45

b. abt 1773 (age 72 in 1845 - ref. # 16)
m. 3 Apr 1802 Elizabeth Burger

7. Jane

m. (1) 16 Dec 1819 Anderson; (2) Fitzgerald
children of # 1: Joshua, 3allie, and Winnie; children of # 2: Perry

and Aswry.

8. Margaret
m.

9, Mary

10, Frankey

John Coffey

Monroe

CHART 4-B
CHILDREN OF JOHN AND JANE COFFEY: # 3, JOHN

b, abt 1733, Essex co., VA
m. (1) Dorcas Carter, (2) Nancy Richardson
probable children:

1, Meredith®

b. abt 1760-70 (perhaps 1769), Albemarle or Amherst co., VA

d. 1838, Grainger co., TN

m. Esther (or Hester) (b. abt 1776). - md. abt 1797.
children: : .

1.

John
b. 18 Qct 1798, Grainger co., TN

"me. (1) 2% Peb 1821 Rebecca Ragsdale; (2) Jane Hopper

2,

3.

Anna

b, abt 1800, Grainger co., TN

m. 3 Nov 1819 Jacodb Arnett, Grainger co., TN
James

b. abt 1803, Grainger co., TN

d., bef 10 Sep 1851*, Grainger co., TN

m. 14 Dec 1825 Sally Fielding, Grainger co., TN
children: Joel Henry Coffey and James Temple Coffey.
Dorcas

m., 26 Jan 1840 Jubal Mitchell, Grainger co., TN
Joel

b, abt 1806, Grainﬁer COo. ,

d. bef 10 Sep 1851 Grainger co., TN

m. 5 Fedb }829 Elizabeth Grubdb, Grainger co., TN

f

children:

1. Nancy
m. 16 Oct 1847 John Hinshaw, Grainger co., TN

2. John 5. William E.
b. abt 1833 b, abt 1842

3. Susan 6. Sarah E,
b. abt 1838 m. 6 Dec 1860 Robert Inkle-
m. Samuel 5talsworth barger

4, Jacod 7. Elvira
b. abt 1839 '

®Ref, #s 22 and 23. Thomas Roach, Kenneth Fortner, & Peggy Swenson are descendants,
fGrainger co. TN Invent.of Est. & Wills, 1847-52, pp. 399, 408~10; same, 1852-~,
pp. 157 & 252; Deed Bk. M, pp. 38-41.



6. Mira
b. abt 1809 ——
m. 6 Aug 1827 Hardiman Sparkman, Grainger co., TV '
7. Eliza
m. 16 Feb 1834 Henderson Sparkman
8. Mary
m. 26 Oct 1838 Henderson Dyer, Grainger co., TN
9. Mahalia
m. 11 Aug 1838 Samuel Crain, Grainger co., TN
10, Rice
m. 16 Jun 1839 Elvira Trogden, Grainger co., TN
moved to Crawford co., MO

Possible children of John Coffey:
2, Thomas

b. 1766-84 (age 26-45 in 1810)
30 Sally *
m. 9 Feb 1802 Benjamin Rhea, Grainger co., TN
L, Jenny
m. 23 Sep 1806 Levi Miller, Grainger co., TN .
5. For others see text,
CHART 4-C
CHILDREN OF JOHN AND JANE COFFEY: # 4, EDMOND®
Edmond (or Edmund) Coffey N
b. abt 1735, Essex co., VA :
d. 1808, Nelson co.,, VA am%
m. Nancy Barnett (d. bef 27 Apr 1829 - prob bef 23 Mar), Albemarle or Amherst co,
children:
1. Edmund 3. b
b. abt 1773

d. after 1845 19 MARIESS

m, 3 Jan 1798 Tildy Fitzgerald, Amherst co. VA
2, William

m. 18 Apr 1800 Betsey Giles, Amherst co., VA
3. Reuben

m. 5 Sep 1801 Nancy Giles, Amherst co. VA
4, Amelia (Milley)

b. abt 1772

m. 22 Feb 1793 John Campbvell,Amherst co. VA
5. Nancy

m. Sep 1817 (bond 29 Aug) Joel Campbell, Nelson co. VA
6. Polly

m. 28 Aug 1819 John Steel, Nelson co. VA

€Will of Edmond Coffey in Will Book A, page 1 and Bk. D, p. 70, Nelson co., VA;
marriage rec of Amherst and Nelson cos., VA
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CHART 4-D
- CHILDREN OF JOHN AND JANE COFFEY: # 6, THOMASD
Thomas Coffey
b, 7 Mar 1742, Essex co., VA
d. Apr 1825, Wilkes co., N.C.
m. (1) abt 1762 Elizabeth 3mith, prob Albemarle co., VA
children: d.abT. (776177
1. Elizabeth
b, 25 Oct 1763 Alvemarle co,, VA
d. 1850, Indiana (Owen co.?)
m. David Allen
moved to Owen co., IN in 1828
2, John
b. abt 1765 Albemarle co., VA *
d. abt 1812, Wilkes co., N.C.
m. 3 Oct 1796 Hannah Wilson, Wilkes co., N.C.
children:
Eliza, Cassandra, Wilson (or William), Rebecoca, Jane.
3. Thomas
b. abt 1767, Albemarle co., VA *
m. (1) Margaret Coffey; (23 Nancy Pendley
children of # 1: Joshua, Sallie, and Winnie; children of # 2: Perry
and Astury. .
L, James )
b, 1772, Albtemarle co., VA *
d. 1840, Wilkes co., W& ANC
m. 31 Aug 1799 Delilah Ferguson, Wilkes co., N.C.
R children: Thomas (b. 1804), James, Lovancy, Marvel, Eli {m. Caroline
” ' Storyhh) Myra, and Louisa (m. John Jackson 15 Aug 1820 Wilkes co.)
5, Mary (Pollys
b. abt 1775, Albemarle co., VA *
m. 3 Jul 1796 William Coffey (prob. son of Benjamin).
children: Austin, William, Elijah )
6. Smith *
b. abt 1776, Albemarle co., VA
m. Hannah Boone
children: Squire, Morgan, Athan, Sallle, Leland, Isaac, Milllie,

m. (2) abt 1778/9 Sarah (Sally) Fields, prob. Albemarle co., VA *
children:
1. Martha (Patsy)
b. abt 1780 Wilkes co., N.C.
d, Indiana
m. 3 Sep 1807 Rev., James Dowell
2. William *
b, 29 Nov 17821, wWilkes co., N.C.
d. 21 May 1839, Wilkes co., N.C.
m. 16 Oct 18041 Annie Boone (b, 26 Jul 17851)
children: Daniel, Wilborn, Celia, Gilliam, Calvin (latter is ancestor
of Dr. Robtert Coffey of Portand, OR (see chapter 13).

hsee ref, # 10 for a more complete 1ist of descendants.
L A descendant of this line is Waneta (Coffey) Matney of Tacoma, WA.
P Coffey fam. Bible in possess, of Mrs. Miriam Leeper, Manhattan, KS.



3. Reuben A, o
b, 15 Sep 1785, Wilkes co., N.C.
d. Feb 1854, Indiana *
m. 1805 P311y Dowell, dau of Goerge Dowell.
children:

1. Alfred Martin .
b. abt 1807
m. Jane Coffey
2. Albert .
b. abt 1810
m., Sarah Goodnight
3. Cornelius
b. abt 1812
m. Margaret Smith
4, Emily
b. abt 1814
m, William I. Curtis
5. Malena
b, abt 1816
m. Wilson Coffey
6. Luther
b, abt 1818
m. Myra Crisp
7. Rufus
b, abt 1820 .
m. Charlotte Allen
8. Miriam ™
b. abt 1822
n. (1) John Sanders 30 Sep 1849; (2) J.H. Buchanan
9. Shelton
b, abt 1825
m. Dicey Sanders
10, Judson
b, abt 1830
m. Caroline Rone
All went to Monroce-Owen co., IN in 1832 .
4, Elijah *
b, 1788, Wilkes co., N.C.
d. 1865, Georgia
m. Polly Hull
moved to Georgia in 1835
children: Anderson, Minerva, Newton, Starling, Alphonso, Elvira, Milton.

b. abt 1792
d. N.C.
m. 2 Mar 1824 Samuel Thomas Stewart
6. Lewis "

b. 25 May 1796, Wilkes co., N.C,

d. Owen co, (?S Indiana (moved there)

m. Harriet E. Powell

children: Sarah, Martha, Mary, Richard, Amanda, Jasper, and Sephronia.

Jcoffey Family MS, 2. Smith Reynolds Liltrary, Wake Forest Univ.



7. Jessek

. b, aot 1798, Wilkes co., N.C.
- d. , urmar, or d, 1858 in Georgia if this is the Jesse who *
m. 22 Dec 1821 Winnifred Crumpton, Wilkes co., N.C,
children:
1. Lewis E, (Elbert?)
b, abt 1826
2. William
b, abt 1829
3. Eli
b, abt 1832
4, Martin Van Buren
b, abt 1834
m, 24 Feb 1859 Francis Pettit, Pickins co., GA
5. John
b, abt 1840
8. Larkin
b, 18 Fed 1800, Wilkes co., N.C.
d. 12 Jan 1881, Owen co., IN (moved there in 1833)
m. Catherine H. Wilson 9 Jan 1826, Wilkes co., N.C.
children: Susan, 3ylvester, Lorenzo, Jason, 3Sarah, Adolphus, and Elzy.
9. McCaleb (or Caleb) N
b, 22 Aug 1803, Wilkes co., N.C.
d. 17 Feb 1881, Caldwell co., N.C, (lived near Patterson, N.C.)
n. 1 (or f) Feb 1828 Elizabeth Collett, Burke co., N.C.
children:-Thomas Jefferson, Charles L,,Sarah A., John E, Mary Lou,
Margaret, Wm. Columtus, Martha E., Henry C., James E., Frances
T Caroline, Rachel M., Julia Jane, Laura Louise, and Buddie.

CHART 4-E
CHILDREN OF JOHN AND JANE COFFEY: # 7, REUBEN®

Reuben Coffey
b, 1744, Essex or Spottsylvania co., VA
d- 1818' mrke CO. NCCQ *
m. bef 1772 Sarah (Sally) Scott (d. Oct 1837), prob. Albemarle co., VA
children: (most went to Owen co., IN)
1. John
2. Reuben *
b, 1772
d. 30 Nov 1851, Owen co., IN
m. 7 Feb 1797 Naomi Hays, Wilkes co., N.C.
children: *
1. Hiram (1802-1889), m. Charlotte Stanstury 19 Apr 1827
2, Alfred, m. Rachael Fulling
3. Celia, m. James Sharp
4, Minerva, m. Gilbraith Neil
5. Thomas R., m. Sarah Rocket

Kprob. the J.C. Coffey on Cherokee co., GA 1840 census. »
lsee ref, # 7.
MSources are various tut include rec, of Abby Dyer Griffin and Ann Gold, both
descendants, and a petition of heirs in Burke co., N.C. Ct. of Equiy, Spring
7 term 1838. Abby Dyer & her hrother Freéd were some of the earliest Coffey gene-
alogists. The order of birth may differ from the order listed here.
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6. Denzia (1812-1842), m, William Mayfield
7. Isom (1814~ ?), m. Martha Smock
8. Nancy, m. John Fullen
9. James W. (1819-1885), m. Theresa Wampler
10. Temperance, m. Mr, Moreland
3. Joseph *
d., 1835
children:
1. Sarah, m. Larkin Calloway
2, Margaret, m, Tyre Webb
3. Nancy, m., William Gragg
4, Enoch, m. 15 Dec 1831 Frudence Cragg, Burke co., N.C. (?)
5. Elisha
6. Zacheus
7. HMatilda
8. Luchia Minors in 1838
9. Brice
4, Jesse *
d, 1840
5. Elizabeth B, *
b, 30 Jul 1776

d. 5 Mar 1868, Greene co., IN
m. John Green or Thomas Roper ?
6. Elijah? . *

b, 11

Mar 1779, Globe, Burke co., N.C.

d. 3 Sep 1863, Owen co., IN

me 23

Sep 1803 Mary Abby (Polly) Dyer, Ashe co., N.C.

children:

1.
2.
3.
u.
5.
6.
7.

8.
90
10.
11.
7. James

Lucinda, b. 8 Aug 1804; m. 30 Sep 1838 Emanuel Falkner

Allen, b, 21 Sep 1806, Globe Settlement, Burke co., N.C.

Alfred, b, 18 May 1809; d. 11 Jun 1885,

Amos, b, 12 Jun 1811; md, 11 Feb 1834 Martha K. Niell »
Jane Louisa, b. 12 Jun 1813, Globe settlement, Burke co., N.C.
Albtert, b, 7 Dec 18153 m., 28 Jan 1841 Caroline Hall

Joel Anderson, b. 10 Jun 1818, TN; d. 21 Mar 1901; m. 12 Dec 1847
Charity McDonald

Wm, Trimble, b, 17 Dec 1820, KY; 4. 19 Mar 1879

Wiley H., b, 27 Fed 1823, IN; m. 10 Jun 1849 Harriet icDonald
Malinda Caroline, b, 6 Mar 1825, IN; m. 25 May 1845 Isaac Franklin.
Nancy Emmaline, b. 25 Sep 1827, IN; d. 19 Mar 1904,

D, *

b. 23 Oct 1786, Glove, Burke co., N.C.

d. 27

Oct 1868, Owen co., IN

m. Hannah Alloway Strange (b. 18 Feb 1790, d. 14 Dec. 1871)
moved to Indiana in 1834, first to Monroe and then Owen co.
children:

1.

2.
3.

Archelaus (or Archelius)®, b, 1 Mar 1810, Wilkes co., N.C.;

d. 27 Dec 1900, IN; m. 23 Jan 1834 Rachael Wilson, Ashe co., N.C.
Sally, b, 12 Feb 1812; d. 22 Feb 1861

Abraham, b. 26 Apr 1814, Wilkes co., N.C.; d. 23 Aug 1885; m.
Now 1835 Sally Green.

NInformation from a Bible owned in 1943 by Mrs. Bladen of Indianapolis, IN;
see ref # 7 for further information on this line,
OTales of Pioneers: History of Owen County (IN), Vol II. Spencer (IN) Chamb. of

Comm., Spencer, IN. 19063.
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Subj: Hodge Raymond Coffey
Date: Sunday, October 3, 2004 2:32:22 PM

From: wSjkc@cebridge.net %7,24 o / DZ'
—

To: bculey@aol.com

Bonnie,
Marvin incorrectly describes this family in his book. He was a generation off.

Hodge Raymond Coffey was a son of William H. Coffey and Mary
Faulkner. William was a son of Reuben Coffey and Sarah "Sally" Scott.

William and Mary may have had more children that“-lodge, but | haven't found
them yet.

Hodge was born 1812 in North Carolina, and married Hannah Wilson 13 Nov.
1831 in Owen Co., IN.

Their children were:

Oliver N., born 2 Dec 1832, died 30 Dec. 1900
James L., born 9 Jun 1834, died 6 Nov. 1890
Silas, born 23 Feb. 1839, died 6 Mar. 1904
Mary Ann, no birth info

Serena T., born 1846, died 1 Apr. 1855

Isaac Coffey, no birth info

James L. married 30 Sep 1855 Elizabeth Litton 30 Sep 1855, and had children
Martha, born 1856, and Laura, born abt 1858. In 1850 this family is in
Gentry Co., MO

Silas married 1 Nov 1864 Carclyn Byles; no other info.

Mary Ann married David H. Allen 9 May 1859. No other info.

Serena married Richardson Coffey, son of Benjamin Coffey and Nancy Hayes on
1 May 1860.

This might help someone.

Jack

aolrich://92192181060/

o

Sy

%)Wao,

10/3/04 5:22 PM
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4, Polly (Mary), b. 9 (ort9) Jul 1816, N.C.; d. 18 Oct 1909, Owen co.,
) IN; m. 28 Apr (or Mar) 1859 Anderson b.Mills, Owen co., IN.
i 5. Riley, b. 27 Jun 1818; d. 27 Aug 1855, .
6. John Davidson, b, 4-10PJul 1821, Ashe co., N.C.; d. 5-15P Jan 1909,
Ellettsville, IN; m. (1) 1844 Mary Whisanand, (2) 1847 Mary A.
fayfield, (3) 1874 Mary J. Ridge.
7. Elvira Ann, b. 27 Oct 1823; d. 19 Mar 1880, IN; m. 5 Jul 1853
Geo. W. 3tarnes.,
8. Nancyl

b. 10 Sep 1788, Globe, Burke co., N.C.

d, 19 Apr 1866, IN

m. (1) Durham, (2) Joel Anderson Dyer

ancestor of Abby Dyer Criffin, early Coffey genealogist.

9, William H.9
ba 1789. Glom’ mrke CO., N.C.
d. 17 Oct 1844, Owen co., IN

. M Faulkner . l
Mhi puid nlhnat,"Hod g€

’Q,qynq¢:AIA

ldren:
1. Mary Ann, m. 9 May 1859 David H. Allen
2. Silas, b. 23 Feb 1839, d. 6 Mar 1904, m. 1 Nov 1864 Carolyn Byles
3. John
4, Isaac
5. James L., b, 9 Jun 1834, d. 6 Nov 1890, m. 30 Sep 1855 Elizabeth
Litton -
6. Oliver N., b. 2 Dec 1832, 4, 30 Dec 1900, m. 30 Jan 1851 Elizabveth
Litton
7. Serena T,, b, 1846, d. 1 Apr 1855
10. Thomas
- d. bef 1838 (no children) , *
11. Benjamind
b. abt 1790 (?), Globe, Burke co., N.C. *

d. 1843, Owen co., IN
n. 1816 Exa Saphronia Stepp
children:

1.
2,

3.
b,

50
6.

7'

Jesse, b, 18 Nov 1818; d. 10 Oct 1885; m. 12 Febd 1840 Lucinda Burpo
Lawson, b, 15 Aug 18203 d. 7 Aug 1904; m. (1) 1 Feb 1851 Mary
Litton, (2) 1856 Eliza Campbell

Nancy J., b. 1823; d. 3 Feb 1866; m. 22 Dec 1842 David Allen.
Sally Ann, b, 1838; m. (1) William Litton, (2) Ceorge Luggett,
(3) Ira Graham.

William W., b. 15 Nov 1830; d. 18 Jun 1865; m. 7 Feb 1850 Malinda
Litton,

Milton Hiatt, b, 14 Nov 1831; d. 25 May 1915; m. 1 Jun 1858
Cynthia J, Nicholas.—pJames Marion Coffey—>Bessie May Coffeyl®
Matilda C., b, 9 Aug 1837; d. 15 Apr 1917; m. (1) Elijah Miller,
(2) calvin Lyman.

12, Jane ;7 74
n. dames Webb B.our v hOCLEL

13, SallyT N
m. Samuel Curtis

Pvarious dates from different lists; at this writing I don't know which is correct.
QSee ref. # 7 for further information on these lines.

pa#~  TT am not certain that this child fits in this family,

' 99%other of Herschel Sharr (husband of Noreva), El Monte, CA,
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CHART U4-F

CHILDREN OF JOHN AND JANE COFFEY: # 8, BENJAMIN® * /ﬂ%ﬁ

Benjamin Coffey
b, 1747, Spotsylvania co., VA
d, 4 Jan 1834, Hawkins co., TN

m. Polly Hayes (poss dau of Jesse Hayes)
known children:{according to 1790 & 1800 census they had 5 male & 4 female children).

1. Johnt

*

b, 15 Oct 1776, prob., Rowan co., N.C. (area that became Burke co.)

d, 15 Mar 1845, Grainger co., TN

m. Elizabeth Rucker, dau of Colby Rucker, and b, 6 Jan 1787, d,22 Mar 1855.
childreni i

1.

2.

Ausbturn (various spellings), b, 11 (or 14) Jan 1805 Wilkes co., N.C.:
m. abt 1830 Matilda Dalton; d. 30 Dec 1876, Grainger co., TN. A 4
descendant of this line is Jeanne Snodgrass Bonham of 516 Hickory
Hi1l Lane, Cincinnati, OH 45215, Her line is Ausburn —>Thomas
Jefferson Coffey (1822-1897) & Perlina Hayes—>Lee Coffey (1854-
1934) & Isabelle Hiatt——>Arthur A, Coffey (1876-1929) & Gatie
Ramsey—>Ella Mae Coffey (1898- ) & Bradford Snodgrass—>»M. Jeanne
Snodgrass (1928- ) who m. C. Philip Bonham. Another son of
Ausborn,James Madison Coffey (1834-1886) m. Lydia Wolfe and had
Glathia Jane Coffey (1864-1939) who m. Joseph Love Ramsey and had
Janie Lydia Ramsey (n.md.) :

Colby, b. 23 Aug 1806, Wilkes co., N.C.3 m., 22 May 1330 Mary Adams,
Grainger co., TN; d. 17 Jun 1888, Estill co., KY., A descendant *
of this line is James V. Coffey of 13869 Sibtley Rd., Riverview,

MI 48192, His line is Colby —>William W. Coffey (1841-1906) & -

Josephine Jones —>Vernon Coffey (1895-1972) & Beulah Curtsinger
—James Junior Coffey (1929-1967) & E1 Wanda Beasley——yJames

V. Coffey. Jeff Radcliffe of Jacksonville, IL is another descen-
dant of Colbvy.

Benjamin, b. 8 Feb 1808, Wilkes co., N.C.; m, Nancy Hayes; d.8 *
May 1867, Rockcastle co.KY, A descendant of thiis line is Bennie Lou
Loftin of 4006 Clemson, Garland, TX 75042, Her line from Benjamin
is —=>Augburn (Ausbon§ Coffey §1846-19233 & Celia Ann Laswell —>
William Ransome (Rance) Coffey (1869-1932) & Lou Mina Jane Clark—>
William Benjamin Coffey (1912- )& Lou Ellen Simcox—>Bennie lou
Coffey (193% ) m. (1) Roy Chapman (div), (2) Robert Loftin.
Nancy, b. abt 1811, TN; n.md.; d. 20 Nov 1896,

John Jackson, b. 12 Jan 1812, Tn; m. 7 Jul 1839 Alsy (Zlsie) Nash,
Grainger co,, TN; d. 15 Oct 1877, Rockcastle co. KY. *
Elizabeth, b. 1821, TN; m. (1) 30 Nov 1839 Nathan Whitsett, »
Grainger co., TN (he d. 22 Jan 1842, Grainger co.), (2) 20 Feb 1845,
Geo. W, Hayes, Grainger co., TN, A descendant of this line is
Kathryn Johnson of 159 3heridan Ave., Longwood, FL 32750. Her line
is through Elizabeth's 2nd marriage to George W. Hayes (abt 1817-
18--)—>William Daniel Hayes (1861-1911) & Ida Mae Henry-—>William
Ernest Hayes (1902~ )& Irene Theresa Gudde~—)Kathryn E, Hayes m.
William Wallace Johnson

SRef, #s 7,22,23,34,44; corr. from Marcus Coffey, Thorn Hill, TN, Jeff Radcliffe,
Jacksonville, IL, James Coffey, Riverview, MI, Allce Ketron, Winchester, IN, &

t

Bennie Lou Loftin, Garland, TX (latter has Bible rec.)

Info. fr. 2 fam Bibles, War of 1812 Pens. pap., census, & toombstone rec.

e

Uchildren proven by deeds of sale(of inheritance of each child) to Ausborn, Grainger

co. Deed Bk. K (pp.209,10,425,532),L (pp130,491,602-3);also Bible recs.



7.
8.
9.
10.
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Sarah Lucinda, b. 1822, TN; m. 21 Mar 1840 William Coffey (son of
George ), Grainger co.TN;d.4 Nov 1895, prod West Plains, MO
Margaret, b. 28 Feb 1825, TN; m. 7 May 1844 Isaac Bullen, Grainger
co., TW; d. Rockcastle co. KY.

William ¥., b. 31 Oct 1828, TN; m. 12 Jun 1849 Ellen Nash,Grainger
co. TN.; d. 9 Aug 1893, Grainger co. TN

Catherine, b. 10 Aug 1834, TN; m. Sweet(?); d. Prob Cass

co, MO.

probable children:
2. George
b. abt 1782 (age 68 in 1850)
m. Margaret Rucker (prob. sister of Elizabeth and dau of Colby Rucker,

b,

1789-90. )

children:

1,

2,

Y
10,

11.

Mira

b. abt 1810

m. John Hipshire

Thomas

b, abt 1812

Delphia

b. abt 1815

m. 29 Dec 1828 Timothy Dalton, Grainger co., TN
Mary

m. 2 Sep 1833 Jack Dalton, Grainger co., TN
William

b. 20 Jan 1817; d. 15 Jun 1878

m. Sarah Lucinda Coffey, dau of John & Elizabeth, Grainger co., TN
Elijah

b. 23 Feb 1820; 4. 13 Jul 1890

m. 11 Jan 1840 Rebecca Shockley, Grainger co., TN
Matilda

b. abt 1821 :

m. 27 Aug 1835 Tandy Dalton, Grainger co., TN
Malinde (not certain this one belongs in this family)
b, abt 1823

m. 11 Nov 1839 Cleveland Coffey, Grainger co, TN
Mahalia

b, abt 1828

m. 21 Jan 1846 Enos Shockley, Grainger co., TN
Emily or Emelilne

b. abt 1831

m. 20 Feb 1851 Wainright Shockley, Grainger co,, TN
Loulsa .

b. abt 1834

m. 18 Mar 1851 wWilliam Shockley, Grainger co., TN

3. BennettV
b, abt 1779 (age 71 in 1850); d. by 1858
m. 5 Feb 1805 Sally Ferguson
children:

1.

Caswell
b. abt 1806, N.C.; 4. 7 Sep 1882, Grainger co., TN
m. 3 or 4 times, one was Martha Campbell

VBennett was closely associated with Benjamin in Hawkins co. on tax l<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>